

# MEETING MINUTES PLAN COMMISSION 2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI 53511 Wednesday, October 9, 2019 7:00 PM

## 1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Meeting was called to order at 7:00PM. Commissioners Haynes, Johnson, Weeden, Faragher, Ruster, and Robson were present. Commissioner Finnegan and Councilor Preuschl were absent.

# 2. MINUTES

a. Consideration of the minutes from the September 18th, 2019 Plan Commission meeting

Commissioner Weeden made a motion to amend the minutes from the September 18, 2019 meeting to clarify that the parking for 200 W Grand Avenue was on the first floor, rather than under the building. Commissioner Robson seconded the motion. Motion carried, voice vote.

### 3. REPORTS

a. Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area in the CBD-1, Central Business District-Core, for the property located at 414 Pleasant Street. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and recommendation.

Commissioner Faragher asked who owned the parking lot behind 414 Pleasant Street. Ms. Christensen said that First National Bank owns it.

Commissioner Faragher opened the public hearing.

Thomas Morgan, 829 Church St, owner of Cheez Head Brewery, stated that there is an easement for Amy Arnold for the tenants that live upstairs. Mr. Morgan stated that there is one car that has a lease agreement to park there, and in the future the tenants will not be given the lease to park there anymore.

Commissioner Johnson didn't want the proposed meat smoker to be delayed by having to go back through the Conditional Use process and asked why it is not being addressed now. Mr. Christensen stated that the Fire Department has some things they need to get addressed, and City Staff did not want to delay the approval for the outdoor seating area. Ms. Christensen said Mr. Morgan could deal with the meat smoker at a later date. Mr. Morgan stated they are likely to put the meat smoker on the trailer since it is less restrictive, as a trailer becomes more like a food truck, and he would want to plug it in as an electric hybrid. Commissioner Johnson asked what would have to be done to allow the meat smoker to be installed without coming back through the Conditional Use process. Ms. Christensen said that Commissioner Johnson could make a motion to modify the 3<sup>rd</sup> condition.

Commissioner Ruster asked what Mr. Morgan was going to do with the power lines, and if they were going to raise them. Mr. Morgan said the owner, Amy Arnold, just got approval from Alliant Energy. Mr. Morgan said there will be three phase power instead of one, and Alliant Energy approved the contract. The existing line will be removed and replaced with a new one. Mr. Morgan said the 5 foot clearance will not be an issue; charter will rewire the wires so they are not hanging low, and it is coming in around 12 feet, and going up to 20 feet at the pole.

Commissioner Faragher closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to amend the 3<sup>rd</sup> condition to allow the meat smoker to be approved subject to any conditions imposed by fire department. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Haynes. Motion carried, voice vote.

Commissioner Haynes made a motion to the 1<sup>st</sup> condition to remove the section about alcohol sales. The motion was seconded by Johnson. Motion carried, voice vote.

Commissioner Haynes made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit, as amended. Commissioner Weeden seconded. Motion carried, voice vote.

b. Consideration of a Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan Amendment to add an additional duplex in lieu of storm water detention at the property located at 1920 Whipple Street.

Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and recommendation.

Commissioner Weeden asked what changed in the need for the detention between 2017 and now.

Frank McKearn, 2857 Bartells Dr, representing Battermans, said when the PUD was submitted the final engineering was not completed. Mr. McKearn stated that when

Batterman's did the final engineering, the detention was not needed on this portion of the site, and the owner was fine with just leaving the PUD plan as it was. The owner has since changed his mind and wants to construct a duplex on this part of the site. Ms. Christensen asked Mr. McKearn if there was a timeline to construct the duplexes. Mr. McKearn indicated the owner wanted to start this year, but it will probably be delayed until next spring.

Commission Ruster stated she had concerns with the landscaping buffer, given the size of the landscaping that was installed along Townline Avenue. Ms. Christensen stated that City Planner, Hilary Rottmann, went out to the site and felt that there should be a landscape buffer between the duplexes and the storage units, and as a result, was requiring more landscaping. Commissioner Johnson asked whose responsibility it was to install the landscape buffer. Commissioner Johnson asked if the condition was on the original PUD or the one now. Ms. Christensen stated it was in the original PUD to have a landscape strip along Townline Ave consisting of Evergreen Shrubs at least 3 feet in height. Ms. Christensen said that the City Planning staff can check to make sure the shrubs are standing 3 feet in height.

The Commission discussed the landscaping requirements for a landscape buffer, and Commissioner Johnson said that he felt what was being proposed was more than enough landscaping.

Commissioner Faragher opened and closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the PUD Master Land Use Plan Amendment, seconded by Commissioner Johnson. Motion carried, voice vote.

# 4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Julie Christensen stated that the City Council approved the two PUDs from the last meeting for 511 Public Ave, 200 W. Grand Ave, and 525 Cross St. However, the rezoning to PUD was laid over and will be acted on at City Council's next meeting. She also noted that the City Council is working on a purchase and sales agreement for the Angel Museum, and beginning stages of the Stadium that will come soon. At the next Plan Commission meeting, action will be taken on a Certified Survey Map.

# 5. ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Commissioner Johnson, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to adjourn the meeting. Motion passed, voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 7:40pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts.